6: 05: 15 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 4, 2011
6:05 p.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 6:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair

Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
M a Costello

M ke Doogan

Les Gara

David Guttenberg

Reggi e Joul e

Mar k Neuman

Tamm e W1 son

Bryce Edgnon

Ron  Shatt uck, St af f to Representative Neunan; Anne
Carpeneti, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Servi ces
Section, Crimnal D vision, Departnent of Law

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Brian Judy, Al aska State Li ai son, Nat i onal Rifle
Association; WIlliam Pinney, Self; Bob Nelson, Self; N ck
Herrera, Sel f Paul Br own, Sel f, Fai r banks; Qui nl an
Stei ner, Public Defender, Departnent of Law

SUMVARY

HB 80- SELF DEFENSE

House Fi nance Conmittee 1 04/04/11 6:05 P. M



HB 80 was REPORTED out of Conmittee with a "do
pass” recomrendation and with a new indeterm nate
note by the Departnent of Law and previously
publ i shed fiscal note: FN1 DPS.

6: 05: 34 PM

#hb80
HOUSE BILL NO. 80

"An Act relating to self defense in any place where a
person has a right to be."

Co-Chair Stoltze discussed housekeepi ng.

RON SHATTUCK, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE MARK NEUVAN, sumari zed
the legislation. He testified that HB 80 addressed the
concern that the current Al aska statute limted the rights
of individual Alaskan's to adequately defend thenselves.
The legislation was crafted in response to constituent
concerns regarding existing state | aw that specifi ed:

"An individual has a duty to retreat when he or she
knows that it can be achieved safely.”

M. Shattuck shared that while researching the issue of
i ndividual self-defense it had been discovered that 18
other states shared Alaska's deficiency in clarifying a
citizen's right to self-defense while "in a place where the
individual had a right to be." It had also been found that
the Nati onal Rifle Association (NRA) was engaged in
di scussions on the topic. The goal of the |egislation was
to make clear to individual Alaskans, |aw enforcenent, and
the courts that individuals had the right of self-defense
in any place where they had a right to be. It was also
expected to deter crimnals.

M. Shattuck explained that under Section 1 of the bill AS
11. 81. 335(b) was anended to read:

(4) protecting a child or a nenber of the persons
househol d; or
(5) in any place where the person has a right to be.

6: 08: 39 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 04/ 11 6:05 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze noted that Representative Costello was
listed as a prinme sponsor of the bill.

BRI AN  JUDyY, ALASKA  STATE LI Al SON, NATI ONAL Rl FLE
ASSOCI ATION (NRA) (via teleconference), testified in strong
support of HB 80. He stated that the legislation would
provi de that |aw abiding individuals had no duty to retreat
froman attack and were justified in using deadly force if
they were in any place they had a legal right to be. He
stated that the bill only applied to a person who had
justification to use deadly force. He stated that existing
Al aska | aw provided that there was no duty to retreat from
areas such as a home or workplace. However, if a person
knows that they can safely retreat from an encounter
outside of those locations, they are legally required to do
so. He stated the bill did not <change the primry
consideration that the wuse of deadly force nust be
justified. He relayed that wuse of deadly force was
justifiable if a person had the reasonable fear of an
assail ant exercising unlawful use of force which would | ead

to: death, serious physical injury, Kkidnapping, sexual
assault, or robbery. He said that existing state law laid
out in what circunstances justification could not be
cl ai ned:

e if the individuals were engaged in nutual conbat

e« if the individual is the initial aggressor of a
conflict

e if the individual provoked the other's conduct

e if the individual is involved in felonious activity or
gang activity as laid out in the Al aska code

6:13: 54 PM

M. Judy stated that renoving the duty of retreat from
current statute would alter the need for justification for
the use of deadly force. Currently, a person who resists
and aggressor overzealously wthout the consideration of
retreat would bear the risk of conviction. The bill renoves
the retreat provision from the victim shifting the risk
calculation back to the aggressor. He disputed concerns
that the l|egislation would encourage unnecessary vViol ence.
He argued that the bill only spoke to cases where the
individual was clearly justified in the use of deadly
force. He relayed that the NRA believed that the "sanctity
of life" argunents were |less conpelling when the person
killed was commtting a violent «crine against another

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 04/ 11 6:05 P. M



i ndividual. He concluded victims and not crimnals should
be protected under the | aw

6:16:46 PM

WLLI AM PINNEY, SELF (via teleconference), spoke in favor
of the legislation. He relayed a personal story of road
rage. He stated that during the encounter with what he
considered an enraged, possibly drugged man, he did not
have the option to retreat. The man had produced a wooden
basebal | bat and approached him M. Pinney revealed to the
cormittee that he had a concealed carry permt and had
drawn his weapon. As the man approached his vehicle he
warned the man that he should stay back. The man did not
heed the warning imedi ately, but eventually retreated. He
believed that the proposed legislation would protect
Al askans.

Representative Gara pointed out that law currently in place
protected the actions taken by M. Pinney.

6: 24: 53 PM

BOB NELSON, SELF (via teleconference), testified in support
of the legislation. He relayed a personal story involving a
confrontation with a nman shouting profanities and naking
obscene gestures inside a grocery store. M. Nelson had
asked the man to take the behavior outside when the man
attacked M. Nelson. As M. Nelson tried to retreat the man
struck himmmultiple tinmes. He suffered a brain injury as a
result of the beating. He said that his victims rights
were abridged during the ~court proceedings that had
foll owed and that he would never retreat in a situation of
t hat nature again.

6:28: 13 PM

Nl CK HERRERA, SELF (via teleconference), testified 1in
support of the legislation. He Dbelieved that t he
legislation would strengthen the rights of victins. He
stressed that the idea of taking a human life should not be
taken lightly. He thought that HB 80 would enpower |aw
abi ding individuals to protect thenselves.

6: 30: 04 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 04/ 11 6:05 P. M



Representative Gara wondered if the conmttee had heard
fromthe Departnent of Law (DOL) concerning the issue.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked M. Shattuck how many emails from
constituents had been received regarding the |egislation.
M. Shattuck replied that 80 emails had been received.

6:31:19 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTION, CRIMNAL DiVISION, DEPARTMENT OF LAW responded
that the departnment did not have a position on HB 80. She
understood that she had been called to discuss the fisca

note. She stated that a conmon m sconception of the current
law was that it required a person to nmake a split second
decision in a high-pressure situation. She explained that
the law only required a citizen to retreat when the person
knew they could do so in perfect safety. She asserted that
the state did not prosecute people who act in self-defense.

Representati ve WIson wondered how the outcone of any past
hom cide cases would have changed under the new
| egislation. M. Carpeneti believed that a |lot of people
charged with homcide or serious assaults would pursue a
self-defense line of defense; which otherwi se would not be
al | oned under the current |aw.

Representative WIlson rem nded Ms. Carpeneti that she had
previously testified that HB 80 did not really change how
the departnment prosecuted self-defense cases under the
current statute. M. Carpeneti explained that the |law did
not presently require a person to retreat unless the person
believed they could do so in conplete safety. She furthered
that the difference was that HB 80 would allow a person to
use deadly force without any duty to retreat, as long as
they were justified in using deadly force. She said that
her perspective as a prosecutor exposed her to people who
did not have the sane respect for human |ife as the general
public. She felt that the legislation wuld lead to nore
people falsely claimng self-defense and that the state
m ght not be able to disprove the claimbeyond a reasonabl e
doubt .

6:34:52 PM

Representative Wl son noted that the fiscal note listed two
additional full-tinme enployees. She believed that in order

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 04/ 11 6:05 P. M



to establish the fiscal note the departnment nust have sone
i dea of the nunber of cases that would result from the new
| egislation. M. Carpeneti responded that the npbst recent
fiscal note was indeterm nate because it was difficult to

determine how nmuch the legislation would cost. She
reiterated that the departnent thought that nore people
woul d claim sel f-defense, maki ng prosecuti ons nor e
difficult.

Representative WIson countered that other states were
enacting simlar legislation and perhaps the departnent was
out - of -t ouch wi th public opinion.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered if being a prosecutor limted a
person's ability to enpathize with a victim M. Carpeneti
replied that prosecutors worked regularly with the victins
of crime. She added that in Florida, which had a simlar
statue, the legislation had caused additional hearings and
use of resources.

Representative CQuttenberg asked if public defenders would
expect an increased workl oad because of HB 80.

MR.  QUI NLAN STEINER, PUBLIC DEFENDER, DEPARTMETN OF LAW
(via teleconference) thought that the duty to retreat and
the justification to wuse self-defense were nutually
exclusive. He did not believe that the legislation would
have significant fiscal inpact. He believed that the issue
of self-defense was always on the table for debate. Wether
the bill provided additional available defense or not did
not significantly change the outlay of the case. The
| egislation arguably took away the state's ability to
charge under certain circunstances, but he did not think
that the fiscal inpact would be significant.

Co-Chair Stoltze stressed that anmbiguity in the |law was an
additional burden for a victim He asked whether there
would be less work if self-defense cases were not
prosecuted. M. Steiner replied that he could not predict
one way or the other the fiscal inpact of the |egislation.

6:42: 39 PM

PAUL BROWN, SELF, FAIRBANKS, (via teleconference) testified
in support of HB 80.

6: 44: 02 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 04/ 11 6:05 P. M



Representative Doogan queried the full neaning of the
| anguage found on page 2, line 3 of the bill, "in any place
where the person has a right to be".

M. Shattuck expl ai ned:

"If you were wal king across a parking lot in a public
pl ace, fromthe mall with a handful of groceries, and
it was late at night, you had a right to be there. It
is a public place. In the mddle of an open parking
lot where there was no cover, perhaps, it was
unreasonable to suspect that you could reasonably
retreat. You would have to stand your ground and
protect yourself."

M. Shattuck concluded that the definition typically
referred to places that were public or to a place where the
i ndi vi dual had been invited.

6:48: 21 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the response had satisfied
Represent ati ve Doogan.

Represent ati ve Doogan replied no.

Representative Doogan stated that the |anguage, if not a
term of law, was subject to interpretation. He argued that
he would need to know how the |anguage would nost comonly
be interpreted in order to fully wunderstand what would
happen under the |egislation.

Ms. Carpeneti summarized that the departnent interpreted
the Ilanguage as; and individual had the right to be
anywhere as long as they were not trespassing. She added if
an individual was trespassing on soneone's l|land uninvited
t hey woul d have a duty to retreat.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked how the |anguage applied to the
public domain. M. Carpeneti responded that the public
domai n bel onged to everyone, so everyone had the right to
be there. Under HB 80 a person would not be required to
retreat while in a public park, even if they could do so
with conplete safety to thensel ves and ot hers.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 04/ 11 6:05 P. M



Representative QQuttenberg understood that the bill gave
people the right to defend thenselves regardl ess of where
they were. Ms. Carpeneti replied in the affirmative.

Representative Guttenberg said that the bill sinply renoved
a split-second decision that a person would probably not
have the tinme to nake anyway. Ms. Carpeneti stated that the
current law did not require a person to make that split-
second decision unless it was known that the person could
retreat in conplete safety. The legislation under
di scussion in conmttee allowed the individual not to
retreat even if it could be done safely.

6: 53: 06 PM

Representative GQuttenberg asked if the bill would have
changed the outconme of the Big Lake, Al aska case in which
Pastor Phillip Melke was acquitted after he shot and

killed two intruders as they ran away from his church.

Ms. Carpeneti stated that the case was a point of concern
and was worth discussing. M. Melke had been in a place
that he had a right to be in and had no duty to retreat.
However, the assailants were running away. She did not
believe that the legislation would have made a difference
in that particul ar case.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered whether the attitudes of the
prosecutors would have been affected if HB 80 had been the
statute at the tinme of the trial. M. Carpeneti replied the
question should be presented to the prosecutors who worked
on that particul ar case.

Vice-chair Fairclough wondered about incidents of road
rage. She wondered whether a person driving recklessly on a
public road, as in the situation relayed by M. Pinney,
shoul d be subject to the use of physical force.

Ms. Carpeneti admtted that that situation was a tough one
to wap her head around. She said that the bad driver would
have the right to be on a public street but not the right
to commt a traffic infraction.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough voiced support for the |legislation

6:57: 58 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 04/ 11 6:05 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze noted the zero FN1: DPS and the new
i ndeterm nate fiscal note from DOL.

Co-Chair Stoltze closed public testinony.

6: 59: 14 PM

Representative Costello MOVED to report HB 80 out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recomendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

HB 80 was REPORTED out of Comrittee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with a new indetermnate note by the
Department of Law and previously published fiscal note: FN1L
DPS.

7:00: 05 PM

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 7:00 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 04/ 11 6:05 P. M



